
Planning Board 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

November 14, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Approval of October 10, 2022, Meeting Minutes  

3. City Council Actions Update 

4. Request to rezone the +/- 0.74-acre parcel located at 304 E Washington St (GPIN 
9825231392) from HM (Heavy Manufacturing) to O&I (Office and Institutional) by TRG 
Capital, LLC. 

5. Request to rezone a +/- 15,681 s.f. unaddressed parcel with frontage on Oakwood Street 
(GPIN 982523121) from HM (Heavy Manufacturing) and R-12 (Residential) to R-12 
(Residential) by TRG Capital, LLC. 

6. Request to rezone a +/- 12,632 s.f. unaddressed parcel with frontage on Oakwood Street 
(GPIN 9825232048) from HM (Heavy Manufacturing) and R-12 (Residential) to R-12 
(Residential) by TRG Capital, LLC 

7. Request to rezone two parcels, GPIN 9804720640 and portion of GPIN 9804810638, 
totaling +/- 77.689 acres located at 1447 Trollingwood Hawfields Rd from LM (Light 
Manufacturing) and B-2 (General Business) to LM CD (Light Manufacturing Conditional 
District) to allow light-industrial development including three warehouse buildings by CHI 
Acquisitions, L.P 

8. New Business 

9. Adjournment 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

October 10, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

The Planning Board meeting was held at the Glendel Stephenson Municipal Building located at 106 E. 
Washington Street, Mebane, NC 27302 and livestreamed via YouTube. The video can be accessed 
through the following link: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ia4bM9z8t6Q 

Members Present:  Members Absent:  
Edward Tulauskas, Chair Keith Hoover 
Jason VanBuren Judy Taylor, Vice Chair 
Susan Semonite 
William Chapman 
Kurt Pearson 
Gale Pettiford 

City Staff Present:   
Ashley Ownbey, Development Director 
Kirk Montgomery, IT Director 

1. Call to Order
At 6:30 p.m. Chairman Tulauskas called the meeting to order.

2. Approval of August 8, 2022, Meeting Minutes
Jason VanBuren made a motion to approve the meeting minutes. Susan Semonite seconded the
motion which passed unanimously.

3. City Council Actions Update
Ashley Ownbey, Interim Development Director, provided an update on the City Council’s recent
action at the September and October City Council meetings

4. Request to rezone two properties totaling +/- 87.73 acres located at 1818 Saddle Club Rd (PINs
9826425313 and 9826511986) from R-10 and R-20 to R-12 (CD) to allow for a residential cluster
development of 207 single-family homes by Lebanon Road 3, LLC

Lebanon Road 3, LLC, c/o James Parker, Jr., is requesting approval to conditionally rezone two
properties totaling +/- 87.73 acres located at 1818 Saddle Club Rd (PINs 9826425313 and
9826511986) from R-10 and R-20 to R-12 (CD) to allow for “Tupelo North,” a residential cluster
development of 207 single-family homes. The property is located in Orange County outside of the
City Limits within the Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction. Lebanon Road Partners has the property under
contract to purchase, contingent upon approval of the conditional rezoning.

The Planning staff has reviewed the request for harmony with the zoning of the surrounding area
and consistency with the City’s adopted plans and recommends approval. The Technical Review
Committee (TRC) has reviewed the site plan four times and the applicant has revised the plan to

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=ia4bM9z8t6Q


Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

October 10, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

reflect the comments. The site specific plan, proposed onsite amenities, and staff report are 
included in the meeting agenda packet available here.  

Ashley Ownbey provided an overview and PowerPoint presentation of the request. 

Timothy M. McAvinney of EarthCentric Engineering, Inc. attended the meeting on behalf of the 
applicant and provided a detailed presentation of the conditional rezoning request, including an 
outline of the site plan, proposed public multi-use path, requested dimensional waivers, Traffic 
Impact Analysis (TIA), architectural commitments, and examples of home elevations.  
 
Mr. McAvinney noted that the improvements at the Lebanon Rd and Stagecoach Rd intersection per 
the TIA are still under review by NCDOT and that the developer commits to construct improvements 
or make a $200,000 payment in-lieu for the intersection improvements at the time of the 
application for the 101st building permit.  
 
Kurt Pearson asked how many times the Mebane Technical Review Committee (TRC) reviewed the 
site plan? Mr. McAvinney confirmed that the TRC reviewed the site plan four times.  
 
Susan Semonite asked if Duke Energy had approved the location of the multi-use path within the 
power easement? Mr. McAvinney explained that the developer and project engineer are in contact 
with Duke Power about the path, and have received the requirements for the path to be located in 
the easement, but the location of the path has not been granted final approval. Mr. McAvinney also 
confirmed that some of the required open space for the development is within the power easement 
as well. 
 
Ms. Semonite asked if lot 136 was necessary due to the note on the plans about a potential 
extension of Road D that would impact the lot’s driveway access. Mr. McAvinney explained that the 
note is there to guarantee the lot has sufficient access.  
 
Kurt Pearson asked how much of the property is currently zoned R-10 versus R-20? Mr. McAvinney 
explained that he didn’t have the exact area off the top of his head but that the majority or the 
property is zoned R-10. 
 
Kurt Pearson commented that the waivers requests for this R-12 conditional cluster development 
are necessary so that the site plan can provide for additional open space and other additional 
amenities, while meeting watershed impervious requirements. Mr. Pearson also asked Mr. 
McAvinney to elaborate on the TIA Improvements. 
 
Mr. McAvinney explained that if the required improvements do not exceed $200,000, the developer 
will build out the required improvements at the time of the 101st building permit. If the 
improvements are more complex and exceed $200,000, the Developer will provide a payment-in-
lieu. Ashley Ownbey clarified that TIA identified a degrading level of service at the intersection of 
Lebanon Rd and Stagecoach Rd largely due to vehicles turning left from Stagecoach Rd on to 
Lebanon Rd. In discussion with NCDOT, the cost to install a right turn lane would not necessarily be 

https://cityofmebanenc.gov/meetings/planning-board-meeting-october-10-2022/


Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

October 10, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

the most effective use of funds because it wouldn’t address the left turning traffic, and so a traffic 
signal is being considered. 
 
Susan Semonite asked if any consideration has been given to the impact of traffic from Lebanon on 
to US Highway 70? Mr. McAvinney explained that the TIA did not identify a major degradation in the 
level of service at the intersections towards US 70.  
 
Jason VanBuren asked how many lots would they lose if the setback waivers were not being 
requested and how it compared to Tupelo Junction to the south? Mr. McAvinney answered that he 
did not have the information about the number of lots, but that the requested dimensional 
standards are the same as Tupelo Junction. He also highlighted lots that exceed the minimum 
requested standards and that the site plan is designed with open space to increase separation 
between lots in the rear. 
 
Steve Beckner, 7545 Old Sourwood Trl , commented that he and his mother own the adjoining 
property to the north of the site along Mill Creek. Mr. Beckner asked how much separation there 
would be between his property line and the nearest home and added that there is proposed 
residential development on two sides of his property that is different in character from his rural 
property. Mr. McAvinney highlighted the northern property line and stream as mentioned by Mr. 
Beckner and responded that at the closest point, it would be about 200 ft of separation. 

 
 

Jason VanBuren  made a motion to approve the request as follows: 
Motion to approve the R-12 (CD) zoning as presented; and  
Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. Specifically, the request: 

• Is for a property within the City’s G-4 Secondary Growth Area and is “…generally 
residential and commercial in nature…” (Mebane CLP, p.66); 

• Is providing community facilities in the form of a greenway consistent with Growth 
Management Goal 1.4 (p. 17, 83) 

• Provides a greenway and open space in a developing area, connecting to other locations, 
consistent with Open Space and Natural Resource Protection Goal 4.3 (p. 17, 89, & 90); 

 
William Chapman seconded the motion which passed unanimously. Mr. Tulauskas confirmed that 
the request would be scheduled for a public hearing before the Mebane City Council on November 

7th. 
 
5. New Business 

Ashley Ownbey shared the following new business items with the Board: 
• The Planning Board will meet for a training with the UNC School of Government on 

Wednesday, October 26th at 6pm 
• Larry Teague has resigned from the Planning Board. Staff thanks him for his years of service 

on the Board and will be advertising his open Alamance ETJ seat in the coming weeks 



Planning Board 
Minutes to the Meeting 

October 10, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 

• The public engagement website is live for the Recreation and Parks Comprehensive Master 
Plan and an updated Bicycle and Pedestrian Transportation Plan.  

 
Kurt Pearson asked Ms. Ownbey if any thought has been given to a joint workshop with the City 
Council to discuss shared visions and how to approach growth in Mebane. 

 
6. Adjournment 

Chairman Tulauskas adjourned the meeting at approximately 7:20 p.m. 
 



 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #4 
RZ 22-012 
Rezoning –304 E Washington St 

Presenter 
Audrey Vogel, Planner  

Applicant 
TRG Capital, LLC 
304 E Washington St 
Mebane, NC 27302 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

 

Zoning Map 

 

Property 
304 E Washington 
St GPIN  
9825231392 

Proposed Zoning 
O&I 

Current Zoning 
HM 

Size 
 +/- 0.74 acres 

Surrounding 
Zoning 
R-12, HM, LM,     
B-2, B-1 

Adjacent Land 
Uses 
Single-Family 
Residential, 
Commercial, 
Vacant 

Utilities 
Water and sewer 
present 

Floodplain 
No 

Watershed 
Yes 

City Limits 
City Limits 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

Summary 
TRG Capital, LLC is requesting to rezone the +/- 32,234.4 sf property addressed 304 E Washington St 
(Alamance County GPIN 9825231392), from HM, Heavy Manufacturing to O&I, Office and Institutional.  

The property is developed with one structure currently being used as an office building. The existing use 
is “General Office” use is not permitted in the HM zoning district and is considered nonconforming. 
Rezoning the property will bring the current use into conformity and enable the applicant to expand the 
use. The property meets the minimum lot area and lot width and can accommodate the minimum 
setbacks required for the O&I Zoning District. 

The surrounding zoning in the area includes HM, R-12, B-2 and LM. Several of the adjoining HM lots are 
occupied by the Mebane Home Telephone Company. The remaining HM lots are owned by the applicant 
and are proposed to be rezoned. Surrounding land uses include single-family residential, self-storage, and 
vacant land. A variety of business uses are present across the railroad right-of-way. 

The subject property is located in the G-1 Mixed Use Growth Strategy Area for the Downtown area. The 
proposed rezoning is consistent with the guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the Mebane 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan. The proposed rezoning will be of a lesser intensity compared to 
the existing zoning and bring the current use of the property into conformance with the Unified 
Development Ordinance.  

A project report has not been provided for this general rezoning request due to the simplicity of the 
request and lack of site details. 

Financial Impact 
The developer will be required to make any improvements at their own expense. 

Recommendation 
The Planning staff has reviewed the request for harmony with the zoning of the surrounding area and 
consistency with the City’s adopted plans and recommends approval.  

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the O&I rezoning as presented.  

 
2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 

Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. The request: 
 
 Is for a property within the City’s G-1 Mixed Use Growth Area and provides a small business use in 

the Downtown District (Mebane CLP, p.68), and is consistent with Growth Management Goal 1.1 
(p. 17 & 82) to encourage a variety of uses. 
 

3. Motion to deny the O&I rezoning as presented due to a lack of 
a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning.  

OR 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 
Plan Mebane By Design or any of the City’s other adopted plans. 

Attachments 
1. Zoning Amendment Application 
2. Zoning Map 
3. Future Growth Area Map 
 
 
 



APPLICATION  FOR AZONING  AMENDMENT

Application  is hereby  made  for  an amendment  to the  Mebane  Zoning  Ordinance  as follows:

Name  of  Applicant:  TRG CaP'ia,' L'C

Address  ofApplicant:  304 EaSt Washington Streeti Mebane NC 27302

Address  and brief  description  of  property  to be rezoned:  3o4 Eas' Was"!ngion S'ee'

GPIN  9825231392,  Parcel  ID 168645

Applicant's  interest  in property:  (Owned,  leased  or otherwise)  Parce' OWner

*Do  you  have  any conflicts  of  interest  with:  Elected/Appointed  Officials,  Staff,  etc.?

Yes  Explain: No x

Type  of  re-zoning  requested:  B-2 Genera' Business

Sketch  attached:  Yes No X

Reason  for  the  requested  re-zoninz:  To make parcel more cons!sient W!ifl current use

and  neighboring  uses  in the  area.

Date: 1 0/25/2022

Action  by Planning  Board:

Public  Hearing  Date: Action:

Zoning  Map  Corrected:

The following  items  should  be included  with  the  application  for  rezoning  when  it is returned:

1.  Tax Map  showing  the  area  that  is to be considered  for  rezoning.

2. Names  and addresses  of  all adjoining  property  owners  within  a 300'  radius  (Include  those  that

are across  the  street).

3. 5300.00  Fee to cover  administrative  costs.

4. The information  is due 15  working  days prior  to the  Planning  Board  meeting.  The Planning

Board  meets  the  2'd Monday  of  each month  at 6:30  p.m. Then  the  request  goes  to the  City

Council  for  a Public  Hearing  the  following  month.  The City  Council  meets  the  1"  Monday  of  each

month  at 6:00  p.m.



G

t

Owner  Name: TRG CAPITAL  LLC

304  E WASHINGTON  ST

MEBANE,  NC  27302

GPIN:  9825231392

PID:  216-855-46

ldd'SS  'o"'  @- PERMITAPPROVED

- Address @ PERMITRENEWED
@ Tax Address..  f'%i uxoescoxsrsucriox
@ Preliminary Address --a

leavy  Industrial  DevelopmentApplicants  skree'

@:' APPLIED FOR PERMIT
Preliminanl  Roads

Roads

October  24,  2022

1:756

0 0.009  0.018  mi
I I I

Private  Roads

390-TRAIL Railroads390 -TRAIL   Railroads
The d maseh  a nd ma ps ava}a  bls a re not  gu rvey g  ad e O T a legil

d oc um enl  They  aie a best a ppt>  imalio  n of  what  s o n ihe
g io un d, bu t do c on To n at tnv  The iti  ta co me s li  am va n ou a
so u ice  g na i on a lli. ti  e s tale o T N (X Ih Ca to lin e, a m he re i n

394 - T RAI  L ugsr in reliance upon any inbtm alion ot data jurrug md heteunder
Th e user kn avir ng7 waves  any and aj c la ims for  da tna ge a ag ai m
a ny a nd ml ol  th e entities  compnti  ng Ihe /U am ance CO un ly GIS

395 -TRAIL



1 inch = 155 feet

E CLAY ST

E CENTER ST

E WASHINGTON ST

S 
EI

G
H

TH
 S

TOAKWOOD ST

N
 N

IN
T

H
 S

T

C
IR

C
L

E
 D

R

S S
EVENTH

 S
T

FOREST ST

B-2(CD)

B-2

B-1

B-2

B-2
R-12

R-12

R-12

NC CGIA, Maxar, Microsoft

DATE: 11/08/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE General Rezoning
304 E Washington St

ZONING MAP

R-20 | Residential

R-15 | Residential

R-12 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-12 | Residential

R-10 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-10 | Residential

R-8 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-8 | Residential

R-6 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-6 | Residential

MHP

O&I (CD) | Office & Institutional Conditional

O&I | Office & Institutional

LM (CD) | Light Manufacturing Conditional

LM | Light Manufacturing

HM (CD) | Heavy Manufacturing Conditional

HM | Heavy Manufacturing

B-3 | Neighborhood Business

B-2 & HM | Gen. Business & Heavy Manufacturing

B-2 (CD) | General Business Conditional

B-2 | General Business

B-1 (CD) | Central Business Conditional

B-1 | Central Business

City of Mebane Zoning

City Limits

ETJ

Alamance Parcels

Subject Property

HM

LM

R-12



S 
SE

VE
NT

H 
ST

E JACKSON ST

CI
RC

LE
 D

R

S 
EI

GH
TH

 S
T

E OAKWOOD ST

N
 S

EV
EN

TH
 S

T

CIR
CLE D

R

E FOREST ST

E CLAY ST

E WASHINGTON ST

E CENTER STG-1
Downtown
Mixed-Use

Secondary

NC CGIA, Maxar, Microsoft

1 inch = 175 feet

DATE: 11/08/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE General Rezoning
304 E Washington StFuture Growth Area Map

Subject Property



 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #5 
RZ 22-013 
Rezoning – Oakwood St Parcel ID 
168644 

Presenter 
Audrey Vogel, Planner  

Applicant 
TRG Capital, LLC 
304 E Washington St 
Mebane, NC 27302 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

 

Zoning Map 

 

Property 
PIN 982523121 

Proposed Zoning 
R-12 

Current Zoning 
HM and R-12 

Size 
 +/- 15,681  

Surrounding Zoning 
R-12, HM, LM, B-2, B-1 

Adjacent Land Uses 
Single-Family 
Residential, 
Commercial, Vacant 

Utilities 
Sewer available, water 
requires extension 

Floodplain 
No 

Watershed 
Yes 

City Limits 
City Limits 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

Summary 
TRG Capital, LLC is requesting to rezone the +/- 15,681 s.f. unaddressed property with frontage on 
Oakwood Street (Alamance County GPIN 982523121), from HM and R-12 to R-12. 

The property is currently vacant and located within the Mebane City Limits. The purpose of the R-12 zoning 
request is to eliminate the HM split zoning on the property. The lot meets the minimum lot area and lot 
width and can accommodate the minimum setbacks required for the R-12 zoning district. Sewer is available 
in the area. Water will require an extension or easements to serve the property. The applicant will be 
required to make any improvements at their own expense. 

The surrounding zoning in the area includes HM, R-12, B-2, and LM. Several of the adjoining HM lots are 
occupied by the Mebane Home Telephone Company. The remaining HM lots are owned by the applicant 
and are proposed to be rezoned. Surrounding land uses include single-family residential, self-storage, and 
vacant land. A variety of business uses are present across the railroad right-of-way. 

The subject property is located in the G-1 Mixed Use Growth Strategy Area for the downtown area. The 
proposed rezoning is consistent with the guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the City’s 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan. The proposed rezoning will be a continuance of the R-12 zoning 
to the south and the east of the property and eliminate the range of incompatible uses allowed by the 
existing HM zoning. 

A project report has not been provided for this general rezoning request due to the simplicity of the 
request and lack of site details. 

Financial Impact 
The applicant will be required to make any improvements at their own expense. 

Recommendation 
The Planning staff has reviewed the request for harmony with the zoning of the surrounding area and 
consistency with the City’s adopted plans and recommends approval.  

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the R-12 rezoning as presented.  

 
2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 

Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. The request: 
 
 Is for a property within the City’s G-1 Mixed Use Growth Area and provides a residential use in the 

Downtown Districts (Mebane CLP, p.68), and is consistent with Growth Management Goal 1.1 (p. 
17 & 82) to encourage a variety of uses. 
 

3. Motion to deny the R-12 rezoning as presented due to a lack of 
a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning.  

OR 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 
Plan Mebane By Design or any of the City’s other adopted plans. 

Attachments 
1. Zoning Amendment Application 
2. Zoning Map 
3. Future Growth Area Map 
 
 
 



APPLICATION  FOR AZONING  AMENDMENT

Application  is hereby  made  for  an amendment  to the  Mebane  Zoning  Ordinance  as follows:

Name  of  Applicant:  TRG Capitali LLC

Address  of  Applicant:  304 East Washington Street, Mebane NC 27302

Address  and brief  description  of  property  to be rezoned:  Oa"ood  S'ee'  (no address)

GPIN  9825231212,  Parcel  ID 168644

Applicant"s  interest  in property:  (Owned,  leased  or  otherwise)  Parce' OWner

*Do you have any conflicts of interest with: Elected/Appointed  Officials, Staff, etc.?

Yes  Explain: No x

Type  of  re-zoning  requested:  R-12 Res'denk'a'

Sketch  attached:  Yes No x

Reason  forthe  requested  re-zoninz:  To make parcel more consistent with other

Oakwood  parcels  and  unify  the  parcel  to a single  zone.

Signed:

Date:  10/25/2

Action  by Planning  Board:

Public  Hearing  Date: Action:

Zoning  Map  Corrected:

The following  items  should  be included  with  the  application  for  rezoning  when  it is returned:

1.  Tax Map  showing  the  area  that  is to be considered  for  rezoning.

2. Names  and addresses  of  all adjoining  property  owners  within  a 300" radius  (Include  those  that

are across  the  street).

3. 5300.00  Fee to cover  administrative  costs.

4.  The information  is due  15  working  days prior  to the  Planning  Board  meeting.  The Planning

Board  meets  the  2'd Monday  of  each month  at 6:30  p.m. Then  the  request  goes  to the  City

Council  for  a Public  Hearing  the  following  month.  The City  Council  meets  the  1"'  Monday  of  each

month  at 6:00  p.m.



03

8

503

('l

Owner Name: TRG  CAPITAL  LLC

304 E WASHINGTON  ST

MEBANE,  NC 27302
GPIN:  9825231212

PID: 216-855-50

ldd'S8POin"  @ PERMITAPPROVED

'  Add'aSS @ PERMITRENEWED@ Tax Address
. . f'%i UNDER  CONSTRUCTION

@ Prelimmary Address  %"

leavy  Industrial  DevelopmentApplicants  sfrea-

@ APPLIED FOR PERMIT
Preliminay  Roads

Roads

October  24, 2022

1 :600

0 0.007 0.014 mi
I I I

Private  Roads 395  -TRAIL

391 -TRAIL

390  -TRAIL -4-  Railroads

01 SC 1.A IM ER

Th e d ata as b a nd ma (s  a va }a ble a ie n o t au ive y g  ad e o y e Is ga I
dtcument  They  are a best appiximalion  olwhat  ii  on the
gro  un (l bul *  c onlm n et tam The *ts  co mes fam  va n ous
sources  naional7,  The sJe  ofNtrlh  Caiolina,  snd here  in

394 - T RAI L userm  rellance  U.i*  an-y- i-n'*i'im- glio-n OT :;i4  iui;is  ;Th  ;er;'unffi';

a ny a n d al I o l Ih e an lilie  s w  m p nii ng the Al am an ce C o fin ly G



1 inch = 155 feet

E CLAY ST

E CENTER ST

E WASHINGTON ST

S 
EI

G
H

TH
 S

TOAKWOOD ST

N
 N

IN
T

H
 S

T

C
IR

C
L

E
 D

R

S S
EVENTH

 S
T

FOREST ST

B-2(CD)

B-2

B-1

B-2

B-2
R-12

R-12

R-12

NC CGIA, Maxar, Microsoft

DATE: 11/08/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE General Rezoning
Parcel ID 168644

ZONING MAP

R-20 | Residential

R-15 | Residential

R-12 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-12 | Residential

R-10 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-10 | Residential

R-8 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-8 | Residential

R-6 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-6 | Residential

MHP

O&I (CD) | Office & Institutional Conditional

O&I | Office & Institutional

LM (CD) | Light Manufacturing Conditional

LM | Light Manufacturing

HM (CD) | Heavy Manufacturing Conditional

HM | Heavy Manufacturing

B-3 | Neighborhood Business

B-2 & HM | Gen. Business & Heavy Manufacturing

B-2 (CD) | General Business Conditional

B-2 | General Business

B-1 (CD) | Central Business Conditional

B-1 | Central Business

City of Mebane Zoning

City Limits

ETJ

Alamance Parcels

 Subject Property

HM

LM

R-12



S 
SE

VE
NT

H 
ST

E JACKSON ST

CI
RC

LE
 D

R

S 
EI

GH
TH

 S
T

E OAKWOOD ST

N
 S

EV
EN

TH
 S

T

CIR
CLE D

R

E FOREST ST

E CLAY ST

E WASHINGTON ST

E CENTER STG-1
Downtown
Mixed-Use

Secondary

NC CGIA, Maxar, Microsoft

1 inch = 175 feet

DATE: 11/08/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE General Rezoning
304 E Washington StFuture Growth Area Map

 Subject Property



P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #6
RZ 22-013 
Rezoning – Oakwood St Parcel ID 
168648 

Presenter 
Audrey Vogel, Planner 

Applicant 
TRG Capital, LLC 
304 E Washington St 
Mebane, NC 27302 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

Zoning Map Property 
PIN 9825232048 

Proposed Zoning 
R-12

Current Zoning 
HM and R-12 

Size 
 +/- 12,632 

Surrounding Zoning 
R-12, HM, LM, B-2, B-1

Adjacent Land Uses 
Single-Family 
Residential, 
Commercial, Vacant 

Utilities 
Sewer available, water 
requires extension 

Floodplain 
No 

Watershed 
Yes 

City Limits 
City Limits 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

Summary 
TRG Capital, LLC is requesting to rezone the +/- 12,632 s.f. unaddressed property with frontage on 
Oakwood Street (Alamance County GPIN 9825232048), from HM and R-12 to R-12. 

The property is currently vacant and located within the Mebane City Limits. The purpose of the R-12 zoning 
request is to eliminate the HM split zoning on the property. The lot meets the minimum lot area and lot 
width and can accommodate the minimum setbacks required for the R-12 zoning district. Sewer is available 
in the area. Water will require an extension or easements to serve the property. The applicant will be 
required to make any improvements at their own expense. 

The surrounding zoning in the area includes HM, R-12, B-2, and LM. Several of the adjoining HM lots are 
occupied by the Mebane Home Telephone Company. The remaining HM lots are owned by the applicant 
and are proposed to be rezoned. Surrounding land uses include single-family residential, office, self-
storage, and vacant land. A variety of business uses are present across the railroad right-of-way. 

The subject property is located in the G-1 Mixed Use Growth Strategy Area for the downtown area. The 
proposed rezoning is consistent with the guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the City’s 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan. The proposed rezoning will be a continuance of the R-12 zoning 
to the south and the east of the property and eliminate the range of incompatible uses allowed by the 
existing HM zoning. 

A project report has not been provided for this general rezoning request due to the simplicity of the 
request and lack of site details. 

Financial Impact 
The applicant will be required to make any improvements at their own expense. 

Recommendation 
The Planning staff has reviewed the request for harmony with the zoning of the surrounding area and 
consistency with the City’s adopted plans and recommends approval.  

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the R-12 rezoning as presented.  

 
2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 

Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. The request: 
 
 Is for a property within the City’s G-1 Mixed Use Growth Area and provides a residential use in the 

Downtown Districts (Mebane CLP, p.68), and is consistent with Growth Management Goal 1.1 (p. 
17 & 82) to encourage a variety of uses. 
 

3. Motion to deny the R-12 rezoning as presented due to a lack of 
a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning.  

OR 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 
Plan Mebane By Design or any of the City’s other adopted plans. 

Attachments 
1. Zoning Amendment Application 
2. Zoning Map 
3. Future Growth Area Map 
 
 
 



APPLICATION  FOR AZONING  AMENDMENT

Application  is hereby  made  for  an amendment  to  the  Mebane  Zoning  Ordinance  as follows:

Name  of  Applicant:  TRG Camla'- L'C

Address  of  Applicant:  304 East Washington Street, Mebane NC 27302

Address  and  brief  description  of  property  to be rezoned:  Oa"ood  S'ee' (no address)

GPIN  9825232048,  Parcel  ID 168648

Applicant's  interest  in property:  (Owned,  leased  or  otherwise)  Parce' OWner

*Do you have any conflicts  ofinterest  with:  Elected/Appointed  Officials, Staff, etc.?

Yes  Explain: No x

Type  of  re-zoning  requested:  R-12 Res'den"a'

Sketch  attached:  Yes No x

BeasonlorlHerequesleBrezon;nz:TOmakeparCelmOreCOnSjSieniWjih0iher

Oakwood parcels and unify the paSrlgcneeldto?7e /
Date:  10/25/2022

Action  by Planning  Board:

Public  Hearing  Date: Action:

Zoning  Map  Corrected:

The  following  items  should  be included  with  the  application  for  rezoning  when  it is returned:

1.  Tax  Map  showing  the  area  that  is to be considered  for  rezoning.

2. Names  and  addresses  of  all adjoining  property  owners  within  a 300'  radius  (Include  those  that

are  across  the  street).

3.  §300.00  Fee to  cover  administrative  costs.

4.  The  information  is due  15  working  days  prior  to  the  Planning  Board  meeting.  The  Planning

Board  meets  the  2"d Monday  of  each  month  at 6:30  p.m.  Then  the  request  goes  to  the  City

Council  for  a Public  Hearing  the  following  month.  The  City  Council  meets  the  1"  Monday  of  each

month  at 6:00  p.m.



4

4

11

Owner  Name: TRG  CAPITAL  LLC

304 E WASHINGTON  ST

MEBANE,  NC  27302
GPIN:  9825232048

PID: 216-855-56

Add'ass a  PERMITRENEWED

Tax  Address

leavy  Industrial  DevelopmentApplicants  sfrae

@ APPLIED FOR PERMIT
Roads

Preliminay  Roads

October  24, 2022

1:600

0 0.007  0.014  mi

I I I

Private  Roads 395  -TRAIL

391  -TRAIL

Th e d ataseli  and ma  ps ava  Oa ble  aie  n of  su ivey  g  gde  o t a leg  I

39  0  T  R  A  Il  4  8B  j 17@ B d S dy  um ent They ate B ba.t appiar imalion of what s on the
gio  un d. hit  do  c ontain  ei  ioni  Tha  dta  comes  *om  va  n ou B

so  u ices  na I on ally, Th e s !ite  oT N orlh Ca  iolin  a, a nd he  re i ii

fo  r ei e m iiuse,  misie  piese  ntaiio  n, (IT misi ntei Iretatio  n oTth e d da

393 -TRAki  Japan, METI, Esn China (HAeq),o(JWKmbs4smo(mlwdipyeriois.

394   T  RAIL  user in reliance upon any inb+maiion  or bta  luimtmd  heieundei
Ths user knovnng7  waives  any  and  all claima  TOT damages agai's
any  a n d all of  the  entities  an mpmi  ng Ihe  Al sm an ce C 0 unty  GIS



1 inch = 155 feet

E CLAY ST

E CENTER ST

E WASHINGTON ST

S 
EI

G
H

TH
 S

TOAKWOOD ST

N
 N

IN
T

H
 S

T

C
IR

C
L

E
 D

R

S S
EVENTH

 S
T

FOREST ST

B-2(CD)

B-2

B-1

B-2

B-2
R-12

R-12

R-12

NC CGIA, Maxar, Microsoft

DATE: 11/08/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE General Rezoning
Parcel ID 168648

ZONING MAP

R-20 | Residential

R-15 | Residential

R-12 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-12 | Residential

R-10 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-10 | Residential

R-8 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-8 | Residential

R-6 (CD) | Residential Conditional

R-6 | Residential

MHP

O&I (CD) | Office & Institutional Conditional

O&I | Office & Institutional

LM (CD) | Light Manufacturing Conditional

LM | Light Manufacturing

HM (CD) | Heavy Manufacturing Conditional

HM | Heavy Manufacturing

B-3 | Neighborhood Business

B-2 & HM | Gen. Business & Heavy Manufacturing

B-2 (CD) | General Business Conditional

B-2 | General Business

B-1 (CD) | Central Business Conditional

B-1 | Central Business

City of Mebane Zoning

City Limits

ETJ

Alamance Parcels

Subject Property

HM

LM

R-12



S 
SE

VE
NT

H 
ST

E JACKSON ST

CI
RC

LE
 D

R

S 
EI

GH
TH

 S
T

E OAKWOOD ST

N
 S

EV
EN

TH
 S

T

CIR
CLE D

R

E FOREST ST

E CLAY ST

E WASHINGTON ST

E CENTER STG-1
Downtown
Mixed-Use

Secondary

NC CGIA, Maxar, Microsoft

1 inch = 175 feet

DATE: 11/08/22

DRAWN BY: AV

CITY OF MEBANE General Rezoning
Parcel ID 168648Future Growth Area Map

Subject Property



 P a g e  | 1 

AGENDA ITEM #7 
RZ 22-15 
Conditional Rezoning –  
Crow Industrial 

Presenter 
Ashley Ownbey, Development Director 

Applicant 
CHI/Acquisitions, L. P.  
4064 Colony Road, Suite 405 
Charlotte, NC 28211 

Public Hearing 
Yes   No  

 

Zoning Map 

 

Property 
1447 Trollingwood-
Hawfields Road 

Alamance County 
GPINs: 9804810638 & 
9804720640  

Proposed Zoning 
LM (CD) 

Current Zoning 
B-2, LM 

Size 
 +/-77.69 acres  

Surrounding Zoning 
LM, HM, B-2, R-20, 
MHP 

Surrounding Land 
Uses 
Industrial, 
Commercial, 
Residential 

Utilities 
To be extended at 
developer’s expense 

Floodplain 
Yes 

Watershed 
No 

City Limits 
No 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 2 

Application Brief 
See Planning Project Report for more details. 

Recommendations 

Technical Review Committee: 
The Technical Review Committee (TRC) has reviewed the site plan four 
times and the applicant has revised the plan to reflect the comments.  

Planning Staff: 

The proposed development “Crow Industrial” is consistent with the 
guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the Mebane 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan. Specifically, it is located in an 
industrial growth strategy area and serves Goal 1.7.  The proposed 
project is in harmony with nearby light and heavy industrial uses.   

Zoning & Land Use Report 

Jurisdiction: Mebane Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) 

Proposed Use By-Right (Yes/No): No 

Type of Rezoning Request: Conditional 

Special Use Request (Yes/No): No 

 Consistency with Mebane By Design (Yes/No):  Yes 

Utilities Report 

Available Utilities (Yes/No): Yes 

Adequate Stormwater Control (Yes/No): Yes 

Innovative Stormwater Control (Yes/No): No 

Consistency with Long-Range Utility Plan (Yes/No): Yes 

Transportation Report 

Traffic Impact Analysis Required (Yes/No): Yes 

Multi-Modal Improvements (Yes/No): Yes 

Consistency with Bike/Ped Transportation Plan (Yes/No):  Yes 

 

Summary 
CHI/Acquisitions, L.P. is requesting approval to conditionally rezone two properties totaling +/- 77.69 acres 
located at 1447 Trollingwood Hawfields Road (GPIN 9804720640 and portion of GPIN 9804810638) from 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 3 

B-2 and LM to LM (CD) to allow for a light industrial development including three warehouse buildings. The 
property is located in Alamance County in the Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). A request for annexation 
has been submitted to the City and the public hearing is scheduled for the December City Council meeting. 
CHI/Acquisitions, L.P. has the property under contract to purchase, contingent upon approval of the 
conditional rezoning. 

The site-specific plan features a subdivision of the properties north of Senator Ralph Scott Parkway into 
three lots with warehouse buildings on each lot. Building 1 is proposed at +/- 279,000 square feet, Building 
2 at +/- 248,000 square feet, and Building 3 at +/- 156,000 square feet. The site plan shows four driveways, 
with two on Trollingwood-Hawfields Road and two on Senator Ralph Scott Parkway. One of the driveways 
on Senator Ralph Scott Parkway will provide shared access to Buildings 2 and 3. The following conditions 
are proposed with the conditional rezoning request:  

• The applicant is proposing to dedicate a portion of the property south of Senator Ralph Scott 
Parkway to the City of Mebane for a future fire station. 

• The applicant proposes a 5’ sidewalk on the south side of Senator Ralph Scott Parkway and requests 
a waiver from Section 7-6.6(A), which requires sidewalk along all frontages of nonresidential 
development. 

• The applicant requests to calculate parking requirements at 0.75 parking spaces per 1,000 s.f. of 
floor area. The Mebane UDO requires parking to be calculated at 2/3 employees on the largest shift 
plus 1/200 square feet of retail sales or customer service area plus 1/vehicle used in the operation. 

• The applicant agrees to a condition requiring perpetual maintenance of a sight distance easement 
area west of proposed Driveway #4 to maintain proper sight lines. An easement will be obtained 
from the neighboring property owner. 

VHB Engineering NC, P.C. conducted a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) which has been reviewed by NCDOT and 
City staff. Per findings of the TIA, the developer is required to construct exclusive left and right turn lanes 
at the site accesses onto Trollingwood-Hawfields Road and exclusive right turn lanes at the site accesses 
onto Senator Ralph Scott Parkway. All turn lanes are to have at least 100’ of storage and appropriate taper. 
These improvements area must be constructed as a condition of NCDOT driveway permit approval.  

Financial Impact 
The developer will be required to make all of the improvements at his own expense. 

Suggested Motion 
1. Motion to approve the LM(CD) zoning as presented.  
 
2. Motion to find that the application is consistent with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 

Comprehensive Land Development Plan Mebane By Design. The request: 
 
 Is for a property within the City’s G-1 Industrial Growth Area, which “…supports industrial uses…” 

(Mebane CLP, p. 74);  
 



A g e n d a  I t e m  c o n t i n u e d   P a g e  | 4 

 Serves Growth Management Goal 1.7 through the support [of] industrial development at existing 
industrial parks near I-40/85 (pp.17, 59 & 82) 

 
OR 
 
3. Motion to deny the LM(CD) rezoning as presented due to a lack of 

 
a. Harmony with the surrounding zoning or land use 

OR 
b. Consistency with the objectives and goals in the City’s 2017 Comprehensive Land Development 

Plan Mebane By Design. 

Attachments 
1. Zoning Amendment Application 
2. Zoning Map 
3. Site Plan 
4. Planning Project Report  
5. Preliminary Water and Sewer System Approval Letter 
6. Technical Memorandum – City Engineering Review 
7. Traffic Impact Analysis – click here to review and download. 

a. RKA Review of TIA 
b. NCDOT Review of TIA 

 

https://cityofmebane.sharefile.com/d-sbea56f62f02041558b9723ba71bbe8e9




40

Sen
Ralph

ScottPkwy

152

119

Trollingw
ood

H
aw
fields

R
d

Mills
te
ad

Dr

V
ill
a

St
rig

o1D
r

LowesBlvd

S
N
C
H
ig
h
w
a
y
1
1
9

Hawfields

B-2

LM

R-20

MHP

HM

O&I

B-2 & LM

B-2(CD)

R-8

R-6

NC CGIA, Maxar, Esri Community Maps Contributors, Town of Cary, Alamance County, State of
North Carolina DOT, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph,

GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA

DATE: 11/09/2022

DRAWN BY: AO

CITY OF MEBANE Crow Industrial

ZONING MAP 1 inch = 500 feet



©

07 NOV 22



07 NOV 22



R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FWFWFWFW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW FW FW FW FW FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FW

FW FW

FW

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

SIG

SI
G

OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
SIG

SIG

OHE

T

T

20' ZONE 2

(TYP.)

30' ZONE 1

(TYP.)

20' ZO
N

E 2
(TYP.)

30' ZO
N

E 1

(TYP.)

OHE
OHE OHE

OHE

OHE

©

07 NOV 22



R/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/W

R/W

R/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R
/W

R
/W

R/W

FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

100-YR

100-YR

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
HE

O
H

E

O
H

E

SIG

SIG

SIG
SIG

SI
G

20' ZO
NE 2

(TYP.)

30' ZO
N

E 1
(TYP.)

R/WR/WR/WR/W

R/W

R/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE
OHE

T

©

TROLLINGWOOD-HAWFIELDS RD. IMPROVEMENTS

07 NOV 22



R/W R/W R/W

R/W R/W R/W

20' ZO
NE 2

(TYP.)
30' ZO

NE 1
(TYP.)

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W R/W R/W

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

©

DRIVEWAY #4 SIGHT DISTANCE

07 NOV 22



FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

O
HE

O
HE

20
' Z

O
N

E 
2

(T
YP

.)

30
' Z

O
N

E 
1

(T
YP

.)

©

07 NOV 22



R/WR/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

OHE

R/WR/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

OHE

R/WR/WR/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/WR/WR/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W R/W

R/W R/W

R/W R/W

R/W R/W

R/W R/W

R/W R/W

R/W R/W

R/W R/W

©

DRIVEWAY #2 TURN TEMPLATE - RIGHT OUTDRIVEWAY #2 TURN TEMPLATE - LEFT OUT DRIVEWAY #2 TURN TEMPLATE - RIGHT INDRIVEWAY #2 TURN TEMPLATE - LEFT IN

DRIVEWAY #4 TURN TEMPLATE - RIGHT IN

DRIVEWAY #3 TURN TEMPLATE - RIGHT INDRIVEWAY #3 TURN TEMPLATE - RIGHT OUT DRIVEWAY #3 TURN TEMPLATE - LEFT INDRIVEWAY #3 TURN TEMPLATE - LEFT OUT

DRIVEWAY #4 TURN TEMPLATE - LEFT INDRIVEWAY #4 TURN TEMPLATE - RIGHT OUTDRIVEWAY #4 TURN TEMPLATE - LEFT OUT

07 NOV 22



07 NOV 22



07 NOV 22



07 NOV 22



07 NOV 22



R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W R/W
R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W
R/W R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FWFWFWFW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW FW FW FW FW FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FW

FW FW

FW

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

SIG

SI
G

SIG

SIG

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

SD

T

T

SD

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB SB SB SB SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB SB SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SBSBSB
SB

SB
SB

SBSB

SB

SBSB

SB

SB

SB

SBSBSBSBSBSBSB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB SB SB SB SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB SB SB SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SBSB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SBSB
SBSBSBSBSB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

20' ZONE 2

(TYP.)

30' ZONE 1

(TYP.)

20' ZO
N

E 2
(TYP.)

30' ZO
N

E 1

(TYP.)

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

©

07 NOV 22



R/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/W

R/W

R/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/WR/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W
R/W

R/W

R
/W

R
/W

R/W

FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

SIG

SIG

SIG
SIG

SI
G

SDSD

UNKUNKUNKUNKUNKUNKUNKUNK
UNK

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SBSB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SBSB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB SB
SB SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

20' ZO
NE 2

(TYP.)

30' ZO
N

E 1
(TYP.)

©

07 NOV 22



R/W R/W

R/W R/W

SD

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

(TYP.)

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

©

07 NOV 22



FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

100-YR

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SBSBSB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SB

SBSBSB

SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB
SB

SB

SB

SB

20
' Z

O
N

E 
2

(T
YP

.)

30
' Z

O
N

E 
1

(T
YP

.)

©

07 NOV 22



TYPICAL PAVEMENT SECTIONS

NCDOT CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

©

"STOP" SIGN

STOP

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN (N.I.C.)

TYPICAL ACCESSIBLE PARKING LAYOUT SEGMENTAL BLOCK RETAINING
WALL SECTION (DESIGN-BUILD)

TEMPORARY TREE PROTECTION FENCE

07 NOV 22



©

R.T. Peter
Landscape Architecture
Raleigh, North Carolina

919-971-3648 bob.p@rtpla.com

ALTERNATE PLANTING PLAN

R.T. Peter

Landscape Architecture

Raleigh, North Carolina

919-971-3648

bob.p@rtpla,com



©

R.T. Peter

Landscape Architecture

Raleigh, North Carolina

919-971-3648 bob.p@rtpla.com



 

PAGE 1 

PLANNING PROJECT REPORT 
DATE 11/09/2022 
PROJECT NUMBER RZ 22-15 
PROJECT NAME Crow Industrial  

APPLICANT 
CHI/Acquisitions, L. P.  
4064 Colony Road, Suite 405 
Charlotte, NC 28211 

 

CONTENTS 
PROJECT NAME & APPLICANT ........................................................................................... PAGE 1 
ZONING REPORT ............................................................................................................... PAGE 2 
LAND USE REPORT ............................................................................................................ PAGE 4 
UTILITIES REPORT .............................................................................................................. PAGE 7 
STAFF ZONING REQUEST RECOMMENDATION .................................................................. PAGE 8



 

PAGE 2 

ZONING REPORT 
EXISTING ZONE LM (Light Manufacturing) and B-2 (General Business) 
REQUESTED ACTION LM (CD) (Light Manufacturing Conditional District) 
CONDITIONAL ZONE? YES   NO 
CURRENT LAND USE Vacant, Forested, Farm 
PARCEL SIZE  +/- 77.689 acres 

PROPERTY OWNERS 

Sarah S. Bradley 
917 Arrowhead Ln 
Mebane, NC 27302 
GPINs: 9804810638, 9804720640   

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Request to rezone two properties, GPIN 9804720640 and portion of GPIN 
9804810638, totaling +/- 77.689 acres located at 1447 Trollingwood Hawfields Road 
from LM and B-2 to LM (CD) to allow light-industrial development including three 
warehouse buildings by CHI Acquisitions, L.P.  

AREA ZONING & DISTRICTS 

Adjoining properties to the west are zoned LM (Light Manufacturing), and properties 
to the northwest are zoned HM (Heavy Manufacturing). Across Trollingwood-
Hawfields Road the adjacent zoning varies, with properties zoned B-2, LM, R-20 
(Residential), and Mobile Home Park. Properties to the southeast are zoned R-20. In 
addition, the portion of the subject property to the south of Senator Ralph Scott 
Parkway the existing B-2 zoning is proposed to remain. 

SITE HISTORY 
The properties have historically been used as farmland and remain taxed as general 
farms. Stream, wetlands, and floodplain are present. 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
CITY LIMITS? YES   NO  
PROPOSED USE BY-RIGHT? YES   NO  
SPECIAL USE? YES   NO 
EXISTING UTILITIES? YES   NO 
POTENTIAL IMPACT OF 
PROPOSED ZONE 

The proposed rezoning is consistent with the LM and HM zoning of surrounding 
properties and the location of the properties in the North Carolina Commerce Park. 



 

PAGE 3 
 



 

PAGE 4 

 
LAND USE REPORT 

EXISTING LAND USE Vacant, Forested, Farm 

PROPOSED LAND USE & 
REQUESTED ACTION 

The applicant is requesting a rezoning to develop two properties totaling 
+/- 77.689 acres with frontages on Senator Ralph Scott Parkway and 
Trollingwood-Hawfields Road (GPINs 9804810638, 9804720640) for a light 
industrial warehouse development of one 279,000-square-foot building, 
one 248,000-square-foot building, and one 156,000-square-foot building. 
The rezoning request is only for the portions of the properties north of 
Senator Ralph Scott Parkway.  

PROPOSED ZONING LM (CD) (Light Manufacturing Conditional District) 
PARCEL SIZE +/- 77.689 acres 

AREA LAND USE 

The properties are in the North Carolina Commerce Park. UPS is currently 
developing the adjoining property to the west. A Pilot Travel Center is 
across from the site on Trollingwood-Hawfields Road. Residential uses are 
also across Trollingwood-Hawfields Road, including single-family detached 
homes and a mobile home park. Hawfields Presbyterian Church owns the 
adjoining lots to the south, which include the Hawfields Community Park.  

ONSITE AMENITIES & DEDICATIONS 

The applicant proposes a 5’ sidewalk on the south side of Senator Ralph 
Scott Parkway. 
 
The applicant proposes to dedicate a lot to the City of Mebane for a future 
fire station and proposes the dedication of right-of-way from Lot 1.  

CONDITIONAL ZONE? YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED 
CONDITIONS 

The applicant has provided their own parking calculations. The UDO 
requires parking to be calculated at 2/3 employees on the largest shift plus 
1/200 square feet of retail sales or customer service area plus 1/vehicle 
used in the operation. Based on other projects, the applicant is proposing 
parking at 0.75 parking spaces per 1,000 s.f. of floor area. 
 
The applicant is seeking a waiver from the requirement to provide sidewalk 
along the Trollingwood-Hawfields Road frontage. Given Senator Ralph Scott 
Parkway splits the site, the applicant is proposing to provide sidewalk on 
one side of Senator Ralph Scott Parkway. Per Section 7-6.6(A), sidewalk 
should be provided along frontages of new nonresidential development 
unless the requirement is waived by the Mebane City Council. 
 
The applicant agrees to a condition requiring perpetual maintenance of the 
sight distance easement area west of proposed Driveway #4 to maintain 
proper sight lines. 
 
The applicant will dedicate a lot to the City for a future fire station. 

  



 

PAGE 5 

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE BY DESIGN STRATEGY 
LAND USE GROWTH STRATEGY 
DESIGNATION(S) 

G-1 Industrial 
Conservation Area 

OTHER LAND USE CONSIDERATIONS  

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES SUPPORTED 

GROWTH MANAGEMENT 1.7  
Continue to support industrial development at existing industrial parks near 
I-40/85.   

   

MEBANE BY DESIGN GOALS & 
OBJECTIVES NOT SUPPORTED 

 



 

PAGE 6 

 
 
 
  
 



 

PAGE 7 

UTILITIES REPORT 
AVAILABLE UTILITIES YES   NO 

PROPOSED UTILITY NEEDS 

Per the memorandum from Franz Holt of AWCK, the anticipated 
water and sewer use for the proposed development is 11,200 
gallons per day. Building 1 is proposed with a 12-inch water 
main extension along Trollingwood-Hawfields Road from a tap 
to an existing 16-inch water line in Senator Ralph Scott Parkway. 
Buildings 2 and 3 will be served from the existing 16-inch water 
line. Building 1 is proposed to be served with an 8-inch private 
sewer extension connecting to a proposed 12-inch public sewer 
line installed as a part of the City of Mebane GKN Pump Station 
flow reroute project to Graham. Buildings 2 and 3 are proposed 
to be served through an 8-inch public sewer extension 
connecting to Mebane’s 15-inch sanitary sewer outfall. 

UTILITIES PROVIDED BY APPLICANT Applicant has pledged to provide all on-site utilities, as 
described in AWCK’s Technical Memo. 

MUNICIPAL CAPACITY TO ABSORB 
PROJECT  

The City has adequate water & sewer supply to meet the 
domestic and fire flow demands of the project.  

CONSISTENCY WITH MEBANE LONG 
RANGE UTILITY PLAN? 

YES   NO 

ADEQUATE STORMWATER 
CONTROL? 

YES   NO 
 

INNOVATIVE STORMWATER 
MANAGEMENT? 

YES   NO 

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK STATUS 

CURRENT CONDITIONS 

The subject property is situated south of Interstate 40, west of 
Trollingwood-Hawfields Road, and north of Senator Ralph Scott 
Parkway. The site plan features two proposed driveway 
entrances to Building 1 from Trollingwood-Hawfields Road. The 
site also will include two entrances from Sen. Ralph Scott 
Parkway. These entrances will provide access to Buildings 2 and 
3, with neither including turn lanes.  
 
NCDOT provides traffic count data for Trollingwood-Hawfields 
Road, which is currently a two-lane undivided road. In 2019, the 
section east of the site had an average daily traffic volume of 
10,000 trips. NCDOT does not provide any data for Sen. Ralph 
Scott Parkway. The Interstate 40 ramps west of Trollingwood-
Hawfields Road registered 5,500-5,700 trips, while the eastern 
exit ramps each registered 3,600 trips. 
 



 

PAGE 8 

North of Sen. Ralph Scott Parkway, Trollingwood-Hawfields Road 
registers a low Safety Score of 78. The section of Trollingwood-
Hawfields Road that extends from the intersection with Sen. 
Ralph Scott Parkway to the south registers a moderate safety 
score of 33.  

TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS 
REQUIRED? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF RECOMMENDED 
IMPROVEMENTS 

The TIA requires exclusive left and right turn lanes at the two 
driveway entrances on Trollingwood-Hawfields Road and 
exclusive right turn lanes at the two driveways on Senator Ralph 
Scott Parkway. The second driveway on Trollingwood-Hawfields 
Road is proposed to align with the future extension of Lowes 
Boulevard. Additionally, the applicant will be required to 
maintain adequate sight lines at the westernmost driveway on 
Senator Ralph Scott Parkway. This requires obtaining an 
easement from the adjoining property owner. 

CONSISTENCY WITH THE MEBANE 
BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN 
TRANSPORTATION PLAN? 

 
YES   NO 
 

MULTIMODAL IMPROVEMENTS 
PROVIDED BY APPLICANT? 

YES   NO 

DESCRIPTION OF MULTIMODAL 
IMPROVEMENTS 

The applicant proposes to construct a sidewalk for the length of 
the property on the south side of Senator Ralph Scott Parkway. 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
STAFF ZONING 
RECOMMENDATION  

 APPROVE    DISAPPROVE 

STAFF SPECIAL USE FINDING 
 CONSISTENT    NOT CONSISTENT………………..WITH MEBANE 
BY DESIGN 

RATIONALE 

The proposed development “Crow Industrial” is consistent with 
the guidance provided within Mebane By Design, the Mebane 
Comprehensive Land Development Plan. Specifically, it is located 
in an industrial growth strategy area and serves Goal 1.7.  The 
proposed project is in harmony with nearby light and heavy 
industrial uses.   

 



CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

 

Technical Memorandum 
 

Date: November 8, 2022 
 
To: Ashley Ownbey - Development Director 
 
From: Franz K. Holt, P.E - City Engineer 
 
Subject:  Crow Industrial at the NC Commerce Park (NCCP) – City Engineering review 

 
Preliminary Site Plans for Crow Industrial at the NCCP dated November 7th, 2022, and prepared by George 
Retschle, P.E. with Ballentine Associates, PA of Chapel Hill, NC, have been reviewed by the Engineering 
Department as a part of the TRC process. Our technical memo comments are as follows: 

 
A. General 

• Crow Industrial proposed to locate three (3) industrial buildings on a 77.7 acres site located 
within the NCCP and fronting along Trollingwood-Hawfields Road and Senator Ralph Scott 
Parkway.  Proposed Building 1/Lot 1 – 279,000 on 32.5 acres fronting on Trollingwood-
Hawfields Road with two private driveway connections and Building 2/Lot 2 – 248,000 square 
feet on 22.1 acres fronting on Senator Ralph Scott Parkway with two private driveway 
connections with one being shared with Building 3/Lot 3 - 156,000 square feet on 23.1 acres.  

• Stormwater management controls will be required to treat and detain the stormwater runoff 
from the proposed built upon surfaces meeting Mebane Phase II stormwater requirements for 
post-construction runoff. 

• A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) has been completed for the site and reviewed by NCDOT and 
City with certain roadway improvements being identified to Trollingwood-Hawfields Road and 
Senator Ralph Scott Parkway.  NCDOT review and approval will be required for utility 
encroachments, sidewalk improvements, the three proposed roadway connections, and roadway 
improvements associated with required turn lanes identified as a part of the TIA. 

• Sidewalk is planned to be constructed with the proposed future development along Senator 
Ralph Scott Parkway (south side of roadway).  

• The project proposes to dedicate a lot to the City of Mebane for a future fire station site 
located at the southwest quadrant of the Trollingwood-Hawfields Road and Sen. Ralph Scott 
Parkway.   
 

B. Availability of City Water and Sewer 
In accordance with the UDO, this memo is provided to indicate that I have reviewed the preliminary 
water and sewer system layout and find it acceptable and meets City standards based on the 
following: 
 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

1. Water system –  

• Building 1 is proposed to be served with a 12-inch public water main extension along 
Trollingwood-Hawfields Road from a tap to Mebane’s 16-inch water main at Senator 
Ralph Scott Parkway.  This 12-inch line will eventually be looped back to Lowes Blvd. with 
future development and may be considered for oversizing reimbursement per city policy. 

• Buildings 2 and 3 are proposed to connect directly to Mebane’s 16-inch water main in 
Sen. Ralph Scott Parkway with a 12-inch shared tap with separate services from a header 
pipe. 

• Anticipated water use for warehouse distribution is 100 gal/bay x 112 bays = 11,200 
gallons per day. 

• The City has adequate water capacity at the Graham-Mebane Water Plant to provide 
domestic water use and fire flows for the proposed development. 

• Upon completion of public water main improvements, to City of Mebane requirements, 
they will become a part of Mebane’s water distribution system for ownership and 
maintenance. 
 

2. Sanitary Sewer system –  

• Building 1 is proposed to be served with an 8-inch private sewer extension connecting to 
a proposed 12-inch public sewer line installed as a part of the City of Mebane GKN Pump 
Station flow reroute project to Graham.  

• Buildings 2 and 3 are proposed to be served through an 8-inch public sewer extension 
connecting to Mebane’s 15-inch sanitary sewer outfall.   

• Anticipated wastewater use for warehouse distribution is 100 gal/bay x 112 bays = 
11,200 gallons per day.   

• The City has adequate wastewater capacity available in the downstream Mebane 15-inch 
sanitary sewer outfall, Graham’s 18-inch sanitary sewer outfall, Graham’s Cherry Lane 
Pump Station, and at the Graham Wastewater Treatment Plant.  This wastewater flow 
does not account against Mebane’s 0.75 MGD purchased wastewater capacity 
agreement.  

• Upon completion of public sewer main improvements, to City of Mebane requirements, 
they will become a part of Mebane’s sewer collection system for ownership and 
maintenance. 

 
C. Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance, Watershed Overlay District, and Falls Lake 

Watershed Stormwater Regulations 
 

1. Watershed Overlay District requirements are provided under Sec. 5.4 of the UDO. 
These requirements in the UDO are for the Back-Creek Watershed, which includes the 
Graham-Mebane Lake.  These requirements do not apply as the project drains to Back Creek 
below the Graham-Mebane Lake dam with no restrictions on built upon area. 

 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

2. Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance 
Sec. 5.3 in the UDO provides standards for Storm Water Management and 5.4.F requires 
compliance with the Mebane Post Construction Runoff Ordinance (which is a stand-alone 
ordinance titled the Phase II Stormwater Post Construction Ordinance (SPCO)). The standards 
in the UDO are general standards as the Ordinance itself provides detailed standards. The SPCO 
does apply to this project as it will disturb more than one acre of land and it is estimated that 
the new built upon will be more than 24% of the site.  The project proposes to construct three 
privately maintained stormwater management control devices meeting the City’s 
requirements for stormwater treatment and detention.  Fencing is required with water pooling 
at 2 feet and above. 

 

D. Storm Drainage System 
 

Sec. 5-2. D. in the UDO provides requirements for storm drainage systems. The preliminary site 
plans include a preliminary layout of storm drainage swales, piping, and inlets that collect 
stormwater runoff that is directed to stormwater management control devices where treatment 
and detention occurs before being discharged off-site. 

 
E. Street Access and TIA 

 

The industrial development proposes two private driveway connections to Trollingwood-
Hawfields Road (SR 1981) and two private driveway connections to Senator Ralph Scott Parkway 
(SR 2657).  The TIA completed for the project provides for certain improvements to be installed at 
each driveway connection which has been reviewed by the City’s Transportation Engineer (VHB) 
and NCDOT. NCDOT driveway permits, and encroachment agreements will be required for all 
related improvements inside NCDOT right-of-way.  Findings and Requirements of the developer 
are as follows: 
 
Driveway 1 at SR 1981 

• Construct exclusive right turn lane with 100’ of storage and appropriate taper. 

• Construct exclusive left turn lane with 100’ of storage and appropriate taper. 

• One ingress and one egress lane under stop condition with 100’ of protected stem length. 
 

Driveway 2 at SR 1981 

• Construct exclusive right turn lane with 100’ of storage and appropriate taper. 

• Construct exclusive left turn lane with 100’ of storage and appropriate taper. 

• One ingress and two egress lanes under stop condition with 100’ of protected stem length aligning with 
future Lowes Blvd Extension. 

 
Driveways 3 and 4 at SR 2657: 

• Construct exclusive right turn lanes with 100’ of storage and appropriate taper. 

• One ingress and one egress lane under stop condition with 100’ of protected stem length. 

• Provide sight distance as required for driveway 4. 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street | Mebane, NC 27302 (919) 563 5901 fholt@cityofmebane.com 

  W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M  

 

 

 
F. Construction Plan Submittal 

 

The UDO indicates that construction plans for all street facilities, including water and sewer 
facilities, shall be submitted following preliminary plat or site plan approval; therefore, 
construction plans are not required as a part of the site plan review. A utility plan is provided which 
generally shows the proposed water lines, sewer lines, and storm drainage and stormwater 
management devices to indicate that the project is feasible for utility service and providing 
stormwater management. Appendix E, which is included in the UDO, is a Construction Document 
checklist which is to be provided at such time as construction plans are submitted after Preliminary 
Site Plan approval. Based on city engineering review of the referenced preliminary site plans, it is 
my opinion that said plans are in substantial compliance with the UDO. 

 
G. Final Plat Recording 

 
An early final plat recording is being sought by the developer allowing for building permits to be 
pulled for any or all 3 buildings prior to the installation of certain improvements.   The city will 
accept security deposited with the city in the amount of 125% of the estimated and approved cost 
to guarantee their completion.  These improvements include turn lanes to be bonded with NCDOT, 
sidewalk and related curb and gutter installation along the south side of Sen. Ralph Scott Parkway, 
public sewer to the fire station site, public sewer to buildings 2 and 3, public water to building 1, 
streetscape improvements, and permanent stormwater management devices.  This allowance is 
granted through a developer requested waiver with the approval of the Mebane City Council. Prior 
to final certificate of occupancy for any or all buildings associated improvements must be 
completed with the exception of streetscape (weather sensitive) and stormwater management 
devices being converted to their permanent condition (permanent stabilization dependent). These 
improvements will be allowed to be bonded 2 years past final CO and may further be extended with 
staff approval. 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www.cityofmebane.com/


 
 

November 8, 2022 
 

George Retschle, PE 
Ballentine Associates, PA 
221 Providence Road 

Chapel Hill, NC 27514 
 

Subject: Crow Industrial at NCCP – Water and Sewer System 
 

Regarding the subject Preliminary Site Plan and in accordance with the UDO, this letter is provided to indicate that I have 
reviewed the preliminary water and sewer system layout and find it acceptable and meets City standards based on the 
following: 

 
1. Water system –  

• Building 1 is proposed to be served with a 12-inch public water main extension along Trollingwood-Hawfields Road from a 
tap to Mebane’s 16-inch water main at Senator Ralph Scott Parkway.  This 12-inch line will eventually be looped back to 
Lowes Blvd. with future development and may be considered for oversizing reimbursement per city policy. 

• Buildings 2 and 3 are proposed to connect directly to Mebane’s 16-inch water main in Sen. Ralph Scott Parkway with a 12-
inch shared tap with separate services from a header pipe. 

• Anticipated water use for warehouse distribution is 100 gal/bay x 112 bays = 11,200 gallons per day. 

• The City has adequate water capacity at the Graham-Mebane Water Plant to provide domestic water use and fire flows 
for the proposed development. 

• Upon completion of public water main improvements, to City of Mebane requirements, they will become a part of 
Mebane’s water distribution system for ownership and maintenance. 
 

2. Sanitary Sewer system –  

• Building 1 is proposed to be served with an 8-inch private sewer extension connecting to a proposed 12-inch public sewer 
line installed as a part of the City of Mebane GKN Pump Station flow reroute project to Graham.  

• Buildings 2 and 3 are proposed to be served through an 8-inch public sewer extension connecting to Mebane’s 15-inch 
sanitary sewer outfall.   

• Anticipated wastewater use for warehouse distribution is 100 gal/bay x 112 bays = 11,200 gallons per day.   

• The City has adequate wastewater capacity available in the downstream Mebane 15-inch sanitary sewer outfall, Graham’s 
18-inch sanitary sewer outfall, Graham’s Cherry Lane Pump Station, and at the Graham Wastewater Treatment Plant.  This 
wastewater flow does not count against Mebane’s 0.75 MGD purchased wastewater capacity agreement.  

• Upon completion of public sewer main improvements, to City of Mebane requirements, they will become a part of 
Mebane’s sewer collection system for ownership and maintenance. 

 
If there are any questions, please let me know.  
 
Sincerely, 

 

Franz K. Holt, P.E.  City Engineer  
 
CC:   

Ashley Ownbey - Development Director and Kyle Smith, P.E. – Utilities Director 

CITY OF MEBANE 106 East Washington Street  |  Mebane, NC 27302  919 563 5901  fholt@cityofmebane.com 

W W W . C I T Y O F M E B A N E . C O M 

mailto:fholt@cityofmebane.com
http://www/


 

 

 
 

October 7, 2022 

 

TO:   Ashley Ownbey 
Interim Development Director 
E: aownbey@cityofmebane.com 

 
FROM:  Craig J. Hyman, PE 
  Ramey Kemp Associates 
  E: chyman@rameykemp.com 
 

SUBJECT: Crow Industrial TIA Review Comments 
 
Ms. Ownbey: 
 
Ramey Kemp Associates (RKA) has reviewed the subject TIA and issues the following comments. 
 
Study Summary 
 
The proposed site is a light industrial development located west of Trollingwood Hawfields Road, north of 
Senator Ralph Scott Parkway, and south of I-40/85 in Mebane, North Carolina. It consists of 683,000 square 
feet of warehouse space and will have access via two full movement driveways on Trollingwood Hawfields 
Road and two full movement driveways on Senator Ralph Scott Parkway. The northern most driveway on 
Trollingwood Hawfields Road will be restricted to passenger vehicles only (no trucks). The development is 
expected to be constructed by 2024.  
 
The development is anticipated to generate approximately 2,619 daily trips during a typical weekday - with 
468 trips occurring during the morning (AM) peak hour and 161 trips occurring during the afternoon (PM) 
peak hour. Analysis was performed for three (3) scenarios: 2022 Existing Conditions, 2024 Future No Build 
Conditions, and 2024 Future Build Conditions. NCDOT TIP project U-6013 will provide improvements at the 
intersection of NC 119 and Trollingwood Hawfields Road and is expected to be complete by 2024.  
 
The study area intersections are anticipated to operate at acceptable levels of service with the following 
exceptions: 
 

• NC 119 at Trollingwood Hawfields Rd / Old Hillsborough Rd: the intersection is expected to operate 
at an overall LOS E (AM) and D (PM) under no build and build conditions, with several approaches 
operating at LOS E or F, after the implementation of U-6013. However, the opportunity for additional 
improvements at this intersection is limited due to right-of-way and historic property constraints. 
 

• Trollingwood Hawfields Rd at Future Access #1: the eastbound (Future Access #1) approach is 
anticipated to operate at LOS F during the AM and PM peak hours. This is not uncommon for an 
unsignalized minor approach at a major roadway with a high through volume. 
 

mailto:aownbey@cityofmebane.com


 Crow Industrial TIA Review   |   Page 2 of 2 

 

  

• Trollingwood Hawfields Rd at Future Access #2: Future Access #2 is anticipated to operate at LOS E 
during the AM peak hour. This is not uncommon for an unsignalized minor approach at a major 
roadway with a high through volume. 

 
The recommended improvements identified in the TIA are reasonable. Based on NCDOT warrants, right-turn 
lanes are warranted at both site driveways on Trollingwood Hawfields Road. The City should coordinate with 
the NCDOT District office to determine if these turn lanes should be required as part of the developer 
improvements. 
 
The following comments relate to deviations from various NCDOT and/or City analysis guidelines. A revised 
TIA based on these comments is not requested. However, final required improvements may need to be noted, 
pending NCDOT turn lane requirements. 
 

TIA Report  

1. Level of service and delay are not reported for the westbound approach of Trollingwood Hawfields Rd 
at Sen. Ralph Scott Pkwy / Villa Strigo Dr. 

2. Figure 8 – the entering and exiting site trips during the PM peak hour are each missing one trip when 
compared to the trip generation. However, this difference is not expected to significantly impact the 
analysis results. 

3. Based on NCDOT’s turn lane warrants, the following improvements are warranted: 

o A southbound right-turn lane with a minimum of 75 feet of full width storage plus appropriate 
taper is warranted along Trollingwood Hawfields Rd at Future Access #1. (AM right-turn 
volume: 62, opposing volume: 788) 

o A southbound right-turn lane with a minimum 50 feet of full width storage plus appropriate 
taper is warranted along Trollingwood Hawfields Rd at Future Access #2. (AM right-turn 
volume: 41, opposing volume: 755) 

Based on traffic volumes, proximity to adjacent intersections and potential for increased truck volumes 
at Future Access #2, right-turn lanes should be considered at Future Access #1 and Future Access #2. 
Since Trollingwood Hawfields Rd is a NCDOT roadway, the City should coordinate with the NCDOT 
District Office to determine if right-turn lanes will be required at these driveways. 
  

 
Synchro Analysis 

1. In future submittals, consider anchoring the aerial image to the synchro network. 

2. In future submittals, consider balancing volumes between intersections that do not have a sink/source 
(such as the bridge over I-85). The imbalances in the analysis are not expected to significantly impact 
the analysis results. 








	01 November 2022 Planning Board Agenda
	02 October 2022 PB Minutes
	03 TRG General Rezoning - PID 168645
	4.0 Summary Sheet- General Rezoning
	Presenter
	Applicant
	Public Hearing
	Property
	Zoning Map
	Current Zoning
	Size
	Surrounding Zoning
	Utilities
	Floodplain
	Watershed
	City Limits
	Summary
	Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Suggested Motion
	Attachments

	4.1 Rezoning Application - PID 168645
	4.2 zoning map
	4.3 clp growth area map

	04 TRG General Rezoning - PID 168644
	5.0 Summary Sheet- Rezoning - PID 168644
	Presenter
	Applicant
	Public Hearing
	Property
	Zoning Map
	Current Zoning
	Size
	Surrounding Zoning
	Utilities
	Floodplain
	Watershed
	City Limits
	Summary
	Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Suggested Motion
	Attachments

	5.1 Rezoning Application - PID 168644
	5.2 Zoning Map 168644
	5.3 CLP Growth Area Map 168644

	05 TRG General Rezoning - PID 168648
	6.0 Summary Sheet- Rezoning - PID 168645
	Presenter
	Applicant
	Public Hearing
	Property
	Zoning Map
	Current Zoning
	Size
	Surrounding Zoning
	Utilities
	Floodplain
	Watershed
	City Limits
	Summary
	Financial Impact
	Recommendation
	Suggested Motion
	Attachments

	6.1 Rezoning Application - PID 168648
	6.2 Zoning Map 168648
	6.3 CLP Growth Area Map 168648

	06 Crow Industrial Conditional Rezoning
	0. Summary Sheet - Conditional Rezoning - Crow Industrial
	Presenter
	Applicant
	Public Hearing
	Property
	Zoning Map
	Current Zoning
	Size
	Surrounding Zoning
	Utilities
	Floodplain
	Watershed
	City Limits
	Application Brief
	See Planning Project Report for more details.
	Summary
	Financial Impact
	Suggested Motion
	Attachments

	1. Zoning Amendment Application
	2. Zoning Map
	3. Site Plan - Crow Industrial
	4. Planning Project Report - Crow Industrial
	Project name & applicant Page 1
	Zoning Report Page 2
	Land Use Report page 4
	Utilities Report page 7
	Staff ZONING REQUEST Recommendation page 8
	ZONING REPORT
	LAND USE REPORT
	UTILITIES REPORT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION

	5. Technical Memorandum for Crow Industrial at NCCP
	6. Crow Industrial at NCCP -City Engineer's letter of approval for preliminary water and sewer
	7a. Crow Industrial TIA Review Comments - Ramey Kemp
	7b. Crow Alamance TIA Review FINAL


